
Agenda - Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 1 - Y Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 3 Hydref 2019
Amser: 09.40

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Robert Donovan
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565 
SeneddESS@cynulliad.cymru

------

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat 
(09.40-09.45)

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau
 

2 Papurau i'w nodi
 

2.1 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch Comisiynydd 
Seilwaith Cenedlaethol Cymru

(Tudalennau 1 - 3) 

Dogfennau atodol:
EIS(5)-24-19(P1) Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol at y 
Cadeirydd

2.2 Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth ynghylch Cadeirydd newydd 
Maes Awyr Rhyngwladol Caerdydd Cyf (CIAL)

(Tudalen 4) 

Dogfennau atodol:
EIS(5)-24-19(P2) ) Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



3 Craffu ar yr adroddiad blynyddol gyda Banc Datblygu Cymru
(09.45-10.45) (Tudalennau 5 - 13) 
Gareth Bullock, Cadeirydd Bwrdd Banc Datblygu Cymru
Giles Thorley, Prif Weithredwr
David Staziker, Prif Swyddog Cyllid
Rhian Elston, Cyfarwyddwr Buddsoddi

Dogfennau atodol:
EIS(5)-24-19(P3) Papur Briffio

Egwyl 
(10.45-11.00)

4 Caffael Cyhoeddus yn yr Economi Sylfaneol - Cymdeithasau Tai
(11.00-12.00) (Tudalennau 14 - 27) 
Adrian Johnson – Cartrefi Conwy
Steve Cranston – Cymdeithas Tai Unedig Cymru

Dogfennau atodol:
EIS(5)-24-19(P4) Papur Briffio

5 Caffael Cyhoeddus yn yr Economi Sylfaenol - Academyddion
(12.15-13.15) (Tudalennau 28 - 41) 
Yr Athro Kevin Morgan - Athro Llywodraethu a Datblygu
Ysgol Daearyddiaeth a Chynllunio, Prifysgol Caerdydd
Yr Athro Karel Williams, Athro Cyfrifeg a’r Economi Wleidyddol, Ysgol Fusnes 
Alliance Manceinion, Prifysgol Manceinion
Keith Edwards - Ymgynghorydd annibynnol

Dogfennau atodol:



EIS(5)-24-19(P5) Tystiolaeth gan Keith Edwards (Saesneg yn unig)
EIS(5)24-19(P6) Tystiolaeth Pecynnau Cymorth Gallu Gwneud (Saesneg yn 
unig)
EIS(5)-24-19(P7) Tystiolaeth gan Professor Karel Williams and Professor 
Kevin Morgan (Saesneg yn unig)

Ôl-drafodaeth breifat 
(13.15-13.30) 



Julie James AC / AM 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 

Minister for Housing and Local Government  
 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 

Caerdydd • Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  

Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 
 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb i ohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg  yn yr  un iaith ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn y Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 

Ein cyf/Our ref - MA-P-JJ-3219-19 
 

 

 

Mr Russell George AC 
Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau 

 

SeneddEIS@cynulliad.cymru 
 
 

16 Medi 2019 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Annwyl Russell 

 
 
Diolch am eich llythyr dyddiedig 14 Awst. Rwy'n ddiolchgar ichi am eich diddordeb yn y 

comisiwn ac am eich barn. Yn naturiol, roedd yn flin gennyf glywed eich pryderon am y 
comisiwn.  

 
 
Cyfeiriad strategol a chynnydd  

 
Rwy'n deall eich rhwystredigaeth os oeddech yn disgwyl papur cwmpasu o fewn 3 mis a'ch 

siom oherwydd hynny. Rwy'n ymwybodol nad oedd y Cadeirydd wedi'i benodi pan 
ymddangosodd ger eich bron ym mis Mehefin 2018. Ni allaf siarad ar ran y Cadeirydd wrth 
reswm ond sgwn i pa mor fanwl y gallai fod wedi cynllunio pethau ar y pryd.  

 
Yn dilyn fy nhrafodaethau â'r Cadeirydd, rwyf wastad wedi disgwyl mai Adroddiad Blynyddol 

fyddai allbwn cyntaf y comisiwn.  Rwy'n credu bod blwyddyn yn amser rhesymol i gomisiwn 
newydd sydd â chylch gwaith eang baratoi ei adroddiad cyntaf. Fel chithe, rwy'n disgwyl 
ymlaen yn fawr at weld ei gyhoeddi ym mis Tachwedd.  

 
O ran allbynnau eraill, rwyf wedi cael ar ddeall y bydd y comisiwn yn cynhyrchu papurau ar 
bynciau penodol cyn cyhoeddi'r adroddiad ar gyflwr y genedl tua Tachwedd 2021. Byddai 

hynny'n cyd-fynd ag argymhelliad eich pwyllgor. Rwyf am ofyn am gadarnhad o'r dyddiad 
hwnnw.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2.1

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


 
Tryloywder a hygyrchedd i'r cyhoedd  

 
Mae'r Cadeirydd fel finne yn cydnabod bod tryloywder a hygyrchedd i'r cyhoedd yn hanfodol 

i'r comisiwn allu gwneud ei waith yn llwyddiannus. Mae'r Cadeirydd a'r comisiynwyr wedi 
bod yn cydweithio â rhanddeiliaid a byddantyn para i wneud hynny. Mae'r Cadeirydd a 

finne'n cydnabod hefyd fod gwefan dda yn ffynhonnell wybodaeth bwysig i'r cyhoedd. Rwyf 
wedi cael ar ddeall i'r comisiwn ddechrau ar ei gynlluniau i wella'r wefan hyd yn oed cyn 
eich gwrandawiad gyda'r Cadeirydd ar 11 Gorffennaf. Rwy'n llwyr dderbyn y dylai'r 

comisiwn ddarparu mwy o wybodaeth ar ei wefan. Gwna i'n siŵr bod y dogfennau rydych yn 
eu henwi'n cael eu cyhoeddi cyn gynted â phosibl.  

 
Mae'n bolisi gan Lywodraeth Cymru bod paneli cynghori, fel y comisiwn, yn defnyddio 
gwefan Llywodraeth Cymru i gyfathrebu ar-lein. Er enghraifft, mae'r Comisiwn ar 

Gyfiawnder yng Nghymru yn gwneud. Mae hyn yn arbed costau mawr i bwrs y wlad ac nid 
yw yn fy marn i yn peryglu annibyniaeth y comisiwn.  

 
 
Adnoddau  

 
Mae'n bolisi gan Lywodraeth Cymru bod paneli cynghori, fel y comisiwn, yn cael eu cefnogi 

gan swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae'r Comisiwn ar Gyfiawnder yng Nghymru yn cael 
ei wasanaethu fel hyn. Mae holl weision sifil Llywodraeth Cymru wedi'u rhwymo gan God 
Gwasanaeth Sifil Llywodraeth Cymru i wneud eu dyletswydd â gwrthrychedd, gonestrwydd, 

hygrededd a didueddrwydd, a chyda didueddrwydd gwleidyddol yn arbennig, pa beth 
bynnag eu rôl. O ganlyniad, nid oes gennyf unrhyw bryderon ynghylch annibyniaeth y 

swyddogion sy'n cefnogi'r comisiwn na'u rheolwyr. Mae polisïau a phrosesau Adnoddau 
Dynol Llywodraeth Cymru yn effeithio ar bob gwas sifil ac yn gyfrwng i swyddogion fynegi'u 
gofidiau os bydd angen.  

 
Rwy'n cytuno bod angen adnoddau digonol ar y comisiwn. Mae oedi wedi bod o ran 

recriwtio staff ar gyfer y comisiwn oherwydd y paratoadau ar gyfer Brexit ac ad-drefnu 
mewnol yn Llywodraeth Cymru ond mae camau  wedi'u cymryd bellach.  
 

Rwy'n cytuno hefyd y bydd angen mwy o adnoddau ymchwil ar y comisiwn iddo allu 
gwneud ei raglen waith. Roedd angen peth amser ar y comisiwn i ystyried ei ofynion cyn 

bod adnoddau'n cael eu neilltuo. Gan fod y comisiwn wedi cael amser i ystyried erbyn hyn, 
rwy'n disgwyl dod i gytundeb gyda'r Cadeirydd ynghylch y lefel briodol o adnoddau.  
 

 
Y Camau Nesaf  

 
Diolch am fy atgoffa bod y pwyllgor eisoes wedi argymell ehangu cylch gwaith y comisiwn i 
gynnwys cyflenwi tir ar gyfer datblygiadau tai o bwys strategol. Ers ichi wneud yr 

argymhelliad hwnnw, rydym wedi sefydlu Is-adran Tir y Sector Cyhoeddus o fewn 
Llywodraeth Cymru. Bydd hyn yn helpu i gyflawni un o amcanion clir Prif Weinidog Cymru i 

flaenoriaethu trefniadau tir at ddibenion cyhoeddus i helpu i ateb y galw o ran tai ac i 
gyflawni blaenoriaethau ehangach y llywodraeth. Rydym yn bwriadu datblygu dull newydd 
lle y byddwn yn ceisio defnyddio asedau cyhoeddus i sicrhau budd cymunedol ar draws ein 

rhaglen lywodraethu.  
 

 
 
 

 
Tudalen y pecyn 2



Credaf fod y Comisiwn yn gallu cyfrannu at waith y sector tai ac rwy’n bwriadu ehangu ei 

gylch gwaith i gynnwys y canlynol: 
 

 darparu’r seilwaith strategol sydd ei angen i helpu i gyflenwi tai; 

 dulliau newydd o adeiladu tai; a 

 modelau newydd o ariannu a chyflenwi tai. 

 
Byddwn yn adolygu cwmpas a chylch gwaith y comisiwn cyn etholiad y Cynulliad 

Cenedlaethol yn 2021. Rwy'n credu mai dyna fyddai'r amser priodol i ystyried a ddylid rhoi 
sail statudol i'r comisiwn.  
 

Rwy'n sicr bod y comisiwn o ddifrif ynghylch ei gyfrifoldebau mewn cysylltiad â Deddf 
Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol. Bydd meddwl yn yr hirdymor, integreiddio, cyfranogiad, 

cydweithredu ac atal i gyd yn hanfodol wrth gynllunio seilwaith ar gyfer y dyfodol.  
 
Byddaf yn hysbysebu swydd y Cadeirydd cyn hir a bydd fy swyddogion mewn cysylltiad i 

drefnu gwrandawiad cyn penodi ar gyfer yr ymgeisydd y byddaf yn ei ffafrio. Rwy'n edrych 
ymlaen at glywed eich barn. 

 
Mae hwn yn gomisiwn pwysig ac mae ganddo gylch gwaith anodd. Testun siom i fi yw nad 
ydych eto'n teimlo'n hyderus yn y comisiwn ond rwy'n ddiolchgar ichi am fynegi'ch pryderon. 

Rwy'n derbyn y bu yna broblemau dechreuol ond rwy'n hyderus y gallwn eu trechu trwy 
weithio gyda'n gilydd.  

 
 
Yn gywir  

 

 
 
 

Julie James AC / AM 

Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



Ken Skates AC/AM 
Gweinidog yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth  
Minister for Economy and Transport  

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Ken.Skates@llyw.cymru 
Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb i ohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg  yn yr un iaith ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn y Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and 
corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
Ein cyf/Our ref: MA-P-KS-3370-19 
 
Russell George AC 
Cadeirydd 
Pwyllgor yr Economi, Seilwaith a Sgiliau 
 
                                                                                                                          20 Medi 2019 

 
Annwyl Russell, 
 
Hoffwn roi'r newyddion diweddaraf ichi ar y broses o ddod o hyd i Gadeirydd newydd Maes 
Awyr Rhyngwladol Caerdydd Cyf (CIAL).  
 
Mae'r Cadeirydd presennol, Roger Lewis, i adael ym mis Hydref pan ddaw ei gyfnod o 4 
blynedd i ben. Er mwyn paratoi ar gyfer hyn, yn gynharach eleni, cynhaliodd CIAL broses 
recriwtio agored, gystadleuol i drefnu olynydd Roger am y 4 blynedd nesaf.  
 
Rwyf yn falch iawn o gadarnhau bod yr ymgeisydd a ffafriwyd gan CIAL wedi derbyn y 
swydd.  Fodd bynnag oherwydd eu trefniadau dan gontract presennol, nid yw'r ymgeisydd 
yn gallu dechrau ar ei swydd tan Mehefin 2020. Ni allwn felly gadarnhau enw y person sydd 
i olynu Roger ar hyn o bryd.  
 
Oherwydd yr amgylchiadau hyn, rwy'n ddiolchgar iawn i Robert sydd wedi cytuno i aros yn 
ei swydd tan 31 Mai 2020 er mwyn sicrhau cysondeb yn y maes awyr yn ystod y cyfnod 
hwn. Rwy'n siŵr y bydd Roger yn parhau i roi ei sylw ac i arwain yn y swydd bwysig hon.   
 
Ar ran Llywodraeth Cymru hoffwn ddiolch i Roger am y gwaith mawr y mae eisoes wedi'i 
wneud yn y maes awyr, ac a fydd yn parhau i'w wneud nawr tan fis Mehefin.  
 
Byddaf yn ysgrifennu atoch eto yn nes at yr amser i gadarnhau enw Cadeirydd newydd 
Maes Awyr Rhyngwladol Caerdydd. 
 
Yn gywir, 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Ken Skates AC/AM 
Gweinidog yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth  
Minister for Economy and Transport 

Tudalen y pecyn 4

Eitem 2.2

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Ken.Skates@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Ken.Skates@gov.wales


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 5

Eitem 3



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 14

Eitem 4



EIS(5)-24-19(P5) Evidence from Keith Edwards 

The National Assembly Economy, Infrastructure & Skills Committee 

inquiry into public procurement in the foundational economy 
 

Introduction 

 

Ten years ago the social housing sector radically changed the way it did 

procurement by developing the Can Do Toolkits, delivering jobs and training in the 

community and helping support local supply chains. This meant successfully 

challenging the conservative procurement orthodoxy at the time that said you 

couldn’t do this without falling foul of European and UK regulations.  

Ten years on and Welsh Governemnt is exploring this bolder, more radical approach 

as a means of addressing chronic problems within many local economies. Lee 

Waters, Deputy Minister for the Economy and Transport for example, recently made 

a clear link between the foundational economy and the toolkits stating that the 

former: 

‘… builds on work pioneered in Wales a decade ago. The Can Do Toolkits 

were an early initiative in this area to help public sector officers build 

community benefits into procurement’.  

Professor Kevin Morgan of Cardiff University has emphasised the need to learn from 

the experience given the severity of economic challenges we face: 

‘The Can Do Toolkits are a successful example of public sector innovation 

and we urgently need to learn the lessons of their success’ 

This paper submitted by Keith Edwards is based on his and colleagues experiences 

in extracting social, economic and environmental value from public procurement. 

Contributors Include Professor Karel Williams, Can Do Toolkit author Richard 

Macfarlane, Can Do Toolkit legal adviser Mark Cook, Chief Executive of Cartrefi 

Cymru Adrian Roper, Dr Eurgain Powell from the Office of the Future Generations 

Commissioner, Vince Hanly independent procurement consultant, Rhian Edwards 

of the Wales Co-operative Centre and Elin Brock independent community benefits 

consultant. The responses are based on the questions posed by the Committee.  

What is the current position regarding the proportion of public contracts in 

Wales that go to Welsh suppliers? 

Our understanding is that the around 50% of public contracts go to Welsh suppliers 

although this will vary. For example, public bodies in South Wales have access to 

more extensive supply chains when compared to rural authorities where choice is 

often more limited, and this will affect the overall proportions. 

To what extent could increasing ‘local procurement’ by the public sector 

create stronger local supply chains & build wealth in across Wales? 

Tudalen y pecyn 28

Eitem 5

http://www.cih.org/i2i/publications


Working in some of our most disadvantaged communities, securing local jobs and 

developing the local economy are key drivers for housing organisations. According to 

Community Housing Cymru, in 2017/18 Welsh Housing Associations spent an 

estimated £1.2 billion, 84% of which remained in Wales.  

As anchor organisations they are  important local employers in their own right and 

have a strong track record of using investment to deliver social, economic and 

environmental outcomes for the people and communities they work with. in 

partnership with their supply chains (including many SMEs and social businesses) 

they are major contributors to the foundational economy. 

If other public investment could be martialled in the same way there would be huge 

potential to grow local supply chains, create job opportunities and enhance wealth in 

disadvantaged communities, as well as more generally. To maximise the potential 

however a radical approach to procurement is needed. We are currently working with 

a range of public, third and private sector organisations in developing a Can Do 

Declaration (latest iteration attached separately) that builds on housing’s legacy in an 

up-to-date context. The aim is to extend the reach of this approach to include Public 

Service Boards, Regional Partnership Boards, local authorities and other public 

bodies and utilities by for example 

• Adopting the ‘procurement flip’ – taking a long-term view of value and 

challenging the lowest price default position.  

 

• Co-designing procurement involving the ‘3 Cs’ - clients, contractors and 

communities – to set objectives, define value, specify community benefits and 

make processes easy and accessible.  

 

• Moving from competitive procurement to a longer-term relationship based 

approach.  

 

• Embedding a Can Do approach into Well-being plans and Public Service 

Boards.  

 

• Introducing a consistent framework of incentives and penalties relating to   

delivering Can Do contracts.   

 

• Developing a monitoring framework across Wales so that Welsh Government 

can record and monitor progress in delivering a Can Do approach.  

What is your view of the Welsh Government’s intended approach to increasing 

the amount of ‘local procurement’ undertaken by the public sector in Wales? 

Based on the experience of the housing sector, the potential is huge and we 

welcome the new approach. We agree with the Future Generations Commissioner, 

speaking at the Can Do Toolkit 10th anniversary event in July, referring to £60bn the 

public sector will spend in procuring goods, services and works in the next decade:  

Tudalen y pecyn 29



‘If this money was being spent to buy things and improve the economic, 

social, environmental and cultural well-being of people and communities in 

Wales – imagine what would that mean? Wales has a great opportunity now 

to think about how and where to spend that money in the interests of future 

generations’: 

There is some frustration at progress in integrating procurement practices within the 

seven well-being goals of the Future Generations Act and applying the five ways of 

working although the recently announce inquiry into procurement under section 20 of 

the Act will help focus attention on this. It follows that the Act should be used as the 

basis for monitoring impact and outcomes of a new approach to procurement. 

Another opportunity to increase local procurement lies within section 16 of the Social 

Services and Well-being Act which encourages consideration of co-operatives and 

third sector providers, many of whom will be local and active in the foundational 

economy, as deliverers of services. 

In what ways can local spend and collaborative procurement be increased    

and sustained while working within the EU procurement framework,     

whatever arrangements may be in place following Brexit? 

The public sector could be encouraged to treat low value spend (up to the value of 

OJEU thresholds) in a way that will encourage and develop local supply chains. 

However significant There are many gaps in capability and capacity and companies 

complain about the bureaucratic processes for tendering and quotations which are 

often a burden and these need to simplified.  

In terms of client and contractor skills there needs to be significant additional 

investment including in the procurement function (to embrace modern, more 

‘challenging’ approaches) and to support SMEs and social businesses to join local 

supply chains and grow.  

Can you give examples of similar public procurement initiatives           

elsewhere in the UK and EU? 

 

Others are better placed to provide detailed responses, but we are aware, for 
example, of the efforts and apparent successes of public procurement initiatives by 
Preston and Bristol city councils  

The Art of the Possible resources produced by the Future Generations 
Commissioner are also useful sources of information about innovative approaches to 
procurement: 

https://futuregenerations.wales/the-art-of-the-possible/, 
https://futuregenerations.wales/a-globally-responsible-wales/, 
https://futuregenerations.wales/aotp/prosperity/ 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30

https://futuregenerations.wales/the-art-of-the-possible/
https://futuregenerations.wales/a-globally-responsible-wales/
https://futuregenerations.wales/aotp/prosperity/


 

 

The time is right 
The Can Do Toolkits revolutionised the way the housing sector used 
investment to deliver jobs, training and other benefits for local communities. 
Ten years on the time is right to adopt this approach across Welsh 
Government  

Wales faces many economic challenges made worse by the uncertainty around 
Brexit and the lingering effects of austerity. How should we respond?  

According to Lee Waters, Deputy Minister for the Economy, one thing we need to 
do is look much closer to home than in the past. One of the priorities of the 
government’s new economic strategy is to nurture and grow the foundational 
economy - the industries and firms that are present in every community. When 
you add it all up this accounts for 40% of Welsh jobs and £1 in every three spent. 
What’s more, as the minister points out ‘in some parts of Wales this basic 
foundational economy is the economy’. 

Housing anticipated this new agenda a decade ago through the i2i Can Do 
Toolkits. The toolkits revolutionised the way we did procurement by delivering 
local jobs and training. This meant challenging the conservative procurement 
orthodoxy at the time that said you couldn’t do this without falling foul of 
European and UK regulations. They were wrong. 

Ten years on and government itself is embracing this bolder, more radical 
approach using all the levers available locally to address chronic problems. The 
potential is huge. Future Generations Commissioner Sophie Howe points out that 
over the next decade, Welsh public services will spend over £60bn in procuring 
goods, services and works. In her words: 

‘If this money was being spent to buy things and improve the economic, 
social, environmental and cultural well-being of people and communities 
in Wales – imagine what would that mean? Wales has a great 
opportunity now to think about how and where to spend that money in 
the interests of future generations’ 

Little surprise therefore that the Commissioner and the Minister are strong 
supporters of the Can Do Toolkits and see the potential to embed this approach 
far wider than housing. As Lee Waters said recently, the foundational economy: 

Builds on work pioneered in Wales a decade ago. The Can Do Toolkit was 
an early initiative in this area to help public sector officers build 
community benefits into procurement’. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 

 

Momentum around this agenda continues to build including: 

 The National Assembly for Wales Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 
Committee inquiry into public procurement in the foundational economy 
announced in July 2019. 
 

 The Future Generations Commissioner announcement of its first section 20 
review into sustainable public procurement and how contracts and 
frameworks are applying the 5 Ways of working and considering the well-
being goals announced in June 2019. 

The time is right to set the Can Do approach in a modern context to address the 
economic challenges and opportunities we face now and will face in an uncertain 
future.  

A Can Do Declaration 
This declaration has been drawn up by leaders and practitioners across Wales. 
We will engage widely across sectors to make sure we maximise the 
opportunities investment brings for sustainable economic, social and 
environmental benefits to communities across Wales. To do this we will: 

1. Win hearts and minds at the highest level 

We will build on the support we already have and get high level buy-in for a pan-
Wales Can Do approach across the Health, Education, Care, Local Government 
and Housing sectors. 

To do this we will: 

 Work with Welsh Government and the ‘3 Cs’ - clients, contractors and 
communities - to agree a definition of social value that can be easily 
understood and widely adopted. 

 Target high level influencers including Public Service Boards (PSBs) and 
Regional Partnership Boards (RSBs). 

 Lobby to make a Can Do approach mandatory in all public funding and 
grant programmes over £1 million in value. 

 Seek to make it mandatory to identify ‘pipeline’ opportunities in the public 
sector at an early stage so that the Can Do approach can be hardwired in 
from the outset. 

 Develop support and resources for senior influencers based on the i2i 
model. 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



 

 

 Secure high-level support for building Can Do learning networks across 
Wales. 

 Develop a Can Do mentoring programme. 

2. Embrace radical thinking and actions 

The original Can Do Toolkits challenged conservative approaches and 
revolutionised the way we delivered housing investment. We want to explore 
radical new ideas including: 

 The ‘procurement flip’ – taking a long-term view of value and challenging 
the lowest price default position. 

 Co-designing procurement involving the ‘3 Cs’ - clients, contractors and 
communities – to set objectives, define value, specify community benefits 
and make processes easy and accessible. 

 Moving from competitive procurement to a longer-term relationship-
based approach. 

 Embracing decarbonisation opportunity. 

 Broadening the Can Do reach beyond housing and construction. 

 Identifying and supporting networks of ‘3C’ peer champions. 

 Developing case studies and ‘real stories’ that highlight the impact of a 
Can Do approach on individuals and families 

 Embedding a Can Do approach into Wellbeing plans and Public Service 
Boards. 

 Working with Academi Wales to embed Can Do approach into public 
sector leadership programmes such as Summer Schools. 

 Making the scoring of a Can Do approach a ‘business as normal’ practice in 
public procurement. 

 Introducing a consistent framework of incentives and penalties relating to   
delivering Can Do contracts.  

 Developing a monitoring framework across Wales so that Welsh 
Government can record and monitor progress in delivering a Can Do 
approach? 

3. Develop new tools and resources 

We will develop a new series of Can Do Toolkits: 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 

 
Toolkit 1: Supporting the public sector to Develop and adopt Can Do strategies 
that delivers social / economic / environmental value and secures whole 
organisation buy-in including: 
 

 Making a sustainable business case. 
 

 Co-designing a strategy with the ‘3Cs’ – clients, contractors and 
communities. 
 

 Identifying desired outcomes and milestones. 
 

 Aligning the strategy with lean thinking and asset based community 
development (ABCD). 
 

 Upskilling professionals involved in commissioning, procurement, finance 
and internal audit on a Can Do approach. 
 

 Building Can Do teams. 
 

 Designing sector specific Can Do strategies for public spending 
departments. 
 

 Supporting contractors to embrace and deliver a Can Do approach. 
 
Toolkit 2: Embedding targeted recruitment and training (TR&T) into 
commissioning, procurement and delivery including: 
 

 Developing a new range of Can Do model clauses and resources adaptable 
across all public spending departments. 
 

 Setting TR&T objectives, measurement and evaluation. 
 

 Identifying people who could benefit for TR&T and raising awareness of 
opportunities. 

 
 Building confidence and supporting those returning to work or entering 

employment for the first time. 
 

 Providing on-going support to people taking part in TR&T activities. 
 

 Adapting collaborative approaches eg through a shared apprenticeships. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



 

 
 
Toolkit 3: Building the foundational economy by working with SMEs, social 
businesses, mutuals and co-ops by:  

 
 Co-designing commissioning and procurement policies and practices with 

the ‘3 Cs’ - clients, contractors and communities to ensure they are SME, 
social business, mutual and co-op friendly. 
 

 Setting SMEs, social businesses, mutuals and co-ops participation in supply 
chain objectives, measurement and evaluation. 
 

 Identifying and planning the opportunities / pipeline for SMEs, social 
businesses, mutuals and co-ops. 
 

 Identifying and engaging with SMEs, social businesses, mutuals and co-ops  
before specifications have been finalised. 
 

 Exploring client and collaborative opportunities to support / set up social 
businesses to become part of supply chains. 
 

 Disaggregating specifications to enable SMEs, social businesses, mutuals 
and co-ops to compete for work. 
 

 Providing on-going support to SMEs, social businesses, mutuals and co-
ops. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 

1 
 

EIS(5)-24-19(P7) Evidence from Professor Karel Williams and 
Professor Kevin Morgan 
 

Public procurement in the foundational economy: 
Submission to EIS Committee 

 

Q. “To what extent could increasing local procurement by the public sector 

create stronger supply chains and build wealth in communities across Wales”  

A. The large potential here can be realised but only if we clearly set the 

objective of building capable supplier firms and then purposively work both 

demand and supply side policy levers. 

 

1 Confusions about localism: how and why public procurement in Wales has 

promised more than it has delivered   

1.1 Adding up totals of Welsh Government (WG) or NHS procurement in millions creates an 

Impression of unrealised opportunity. But the total is in silos in different organisations, budgets and 

activities, so large values are difficult to access. The procurement function in local authorities, health 

boards and housing associations is under-resourced with few trained staff. The public sector typically 

defaults onto least cost and big contract and only in Welsh housing have Can do Tool kits been 

widely adopted.  

1.2 Post code localism, and measures based on counting supplier invoices, then compound 

confusion by producing a false sense of achievement. As  in Wales 2012-14 when ministers 

celebrated a 34-52 % rise in public procurement spend within Wales since 2003; and all political 

parties, big and small business and Wales TUC then asked for more 1The recurrent problem is that 

local invoice totals do not separate out procurement from  local branches of national chains (eg 

kitchens from Howdens or vans from the local dealer) which generates little value added and 

employment or capability 

1.3 Localising supply is in any case a dubious objective when much Welsh economic activity is 

located along two short corridors (Wrexham/ Flint and M4), and capable Welsh firms in tradeable 

sectors should be capturing non-Welsh demand and exporting goods and services across Offa’s 

Dyke. Local preference by anchors institutions risks creating incapable client firms, where small scale 

employment depends on  local preference within a small area.  

1.4 If Wales was a large, relatively closed national economy we might be able to stop purchasing d 

leakage and get multiplier benefits from circulating demand internally. But stopping demand leakage 

from a small area (Keynesianism in one town like Swansea or a sub region like Swansea Bay)  is a 

defensive game where first mover advantage could easily turn into a zero sum, competitive game 

 
1 http://hummedia.manchester.ac.uk/institutes/cresc/research/Final%20Cresc-
FSB%20Report%20FOR%20RELEASE%20%281%29.pdf pp 48-50  

Tudalen y pecyn 36

http://hummedia.manchester.ac.uk/institutes/cresc/research/Final%20Cresc-FSB%20Report%20FOR%20RELEASE%20%281%29.pdf
http://hummedia.manchester.ac.uk/institutes/cresc/research/Final%20Cresc-FSB%20Report%20FOR%20RELEASE%20%281%29.pdf


 

2 
 

with adjacent regions;  without any guarantee that local demand preference will create or 

strengthen more capable firms on either side of the local or regional boundary.  

 

2 Adding analysis:  clarifying objectives, engaging specifics and understanding 

leverage  

2.1 The primary aim should be to use volume public procurement strategically in a few key sectors to 

build a stock of more capable, secure and grounded Welsh supplier firms; specifically to grow the 

stock of grounded SMEs and to support the often precarious micro firms who account for one third 

of Welsh employment. From this point of view, Increased output and  employment are not an 

objective but a consequence of sound purchasing policy.  

2.2 From the Blaenau Gwent experiment of three housing associations, building capable suppliers  

requires a less transactional and more relational approach to procurement through conversation  

about purchasing requirements, spending plans and supplier needs leading to more mutual 

understanding, predictability of workflow and building of contractor capabilities.   

2.3 The benefit would be a changed ecology of Welsh business i.e. make the relations between firms 

inside Wales more mutually supportive, creating business networks of partners who remain 

financially independent (move away from Anglo American transactional relations and more towards 

Japanese style Keiretsu supplier networks albeit without  financial cross holdings).     

2.4 This is difficult because it involves playing chess in three dimensions:  

a) Spatial: purchasing is geography and area based which is especially important given Welsh 

topography and the differences between South, Mid and North Wales.  

b) Categories: purchasing engages with services and product which have very different 

characteristics e.g. economies of scale and scope in manufacturing vs economies of density 

in services where spatial proximity is important. 

c) Organisations:  purchasing is an activity dispersed across different public and private sector 

organisations with different agendas and autonomy of action. 

2. 5 Business analysis of (public and private) activity specifics indicate the sectors in the foundational 

economy at which we could find leverage of different kinds and where we would be wasting effort:  

a) Labour intensive public services (health education + care) link mainly though wages to 

where their workforce lives and works + their material purchases are long distance e.g. 

Welsh Hospital and Community Care 2017-18 splits 73% labour costs vs 23% purchases (of 

which  60% is  clinical supplies, generally deemed as non-influenceable).  Anchor 

purchasing by eds and meds therefore offers very limited leverage. 

b) Distribution (retail and wholesale) has a high purchase to sales (P/S) ratio; food distribution 

has a consistently high P/S ratio of around 80% so that 83% of Castell Hywel Foods £100 

million turnover is purchases. This looks like an opportunity but is not easily levered  

because limited local purchasing reflects the weakness of Welsh branded food and the  

volume requirements of UK super market chains.  

c) Tourism matters because major tourist attractions bring in visitors + spend (e.g. Zip World 

at Blaenau Ffestiniog brings in 250,000 visitors a year). Here the neglected issue is how do 

the tourist feet fall and does money stick for local benefit. 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



 

3 
 

2.6 The chart below shows that as we move from retail towards housing and residential care activities, 

the leverage arising from purchasing out of total income drops but the leverage via wages and salaries 

paid to employees increases. Activities on the left hand side of the chart offer a greater prospect of 

procurement leverage but this all depends upon (a) how it is possible to influence different 

organisational types to reconsider their procurement /value chain calculations and (b) size of sector 

because, of course,  75% of a very small sector is not worth much. 

 

Notes: 

Industry activities are located on the basis of their collective ratios: purchases in gross output, labour 

costs share of total gross output and operating surplus as a share of gross output. Gross output is 

total sales revenue earned by these activities. Purchases are after deducting value added (or value 

retained from gross income). Labour costs are total employee compensation. 

Operating surplus is either cash (earnings before interest tax and depreciation) or in the case of 

public sector enterprises mostly depreciation. 

Source: Supply and Use Tables, 1997 – 2016 National Income Blue Book, ONS. 

 2.7 Sectoral demand and cross sectoral opportunity is then important:    

a) On current spend the priority should be strategic focus and/or demand aggregation in two 

or three key foundational sectors.  Care, construction and potentially food are  substantial 

sectors with care and construction each employing around 6% of the workforce; and here 

we have enough controllable public and/or not for profit spend to sustain one or more 

SMEs on a sub-regional basis ( e.g. in NE Wales  ie  Gwynedd and Mon) .    

b) Public sector outsourcing contracts also need to be reviewed in a few key sectors ( e.g. 

food, grounds maintenance,) so we identify possibilities of unlocking demand (e.g. Sodexho 

provides a catering service for more than 4,000 workers at DVLA, where purchases account 

for 40% of £550 million of turnover because of extensive contractualised outsourcing).     

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 

4 
 

c) Capital spend also needs scoping, starting here by obtaining 3-5 year spending plans for all 

the utilities active in Wales (gas, electricity, water, telecoms etc.) + then engaging utilities 

about contract size etc.   

d) Identifying cross sectoral service opportunities is important because in e.g. health as in  

blue chip manufacturing, material supply chains lead out of Wales but indirect service 

requirements can be met locally (e.g. electrical and IT).  

 (3) A strategic approach:  how to lever change that builds capability     

3.1 The strategic approach here is to identify a series of actions which act as levers to 

procurement reform that builds supplier capability. Much (though not all) of this will be at 

the interface of public sector procurement and SMEs in a few foundational sectors.  The 

levers are analytically distinct but practically must be pulled together so that, for example, reform of 

public sector demand pull is a necessary but not sufficient condition of reform.  

3.2 Lever: Reform demand pull i.e. work from the purchasing organisation side to raise the 

standard of average purchasing practice. Purchasers will never reform practice unless and until 

it is supported as a strategic procurement function by leaders within their organisations. This is a 

task for the 20 Welsh PSBs2 based on the 22 local authority areas, plus the housing associations and 

the utility bodies such as BT and Dwr Cymru. All these organisations should:   

a) resource the specialist procurement function at organisation level so that change has an 

internal champion – a strategic procurement officer. Embedded officers with a clear change 

agenda are likely to deliver more than consultants who support projects.   

b) ensure purchasing organisations have relevant information about their spend data e.g. as 

recently as 2015, an FSB Wales FOI request showed only 2 Welsh local authorities knew how 

much they spent with SMES3;  

c) ask purchasing organisations to publish 3-5 year pipelines for current and future capital 

programmes; e.g. housing association maintenance + utility company capital spending plans 

are important for the construction sector.  

• remove obstacles to bidding by smaller firms and by SMEs without strong balance sheets; 

e.g.  shared preferred supplier lists, divide contracts + on larger contracts recognise that 

financial penalty clauses narrow the field of bidders. 

3.3 Lever 2: Identify and mentor SME and micro firms with ambition i.e. do not take 

supply side push for granted: Only a subset of supplier firms have ambition and that does not 

automatically translate into capability. Supply side improvement is culpably neglected in most of the 

purchasing reform literature:   

a) Find out what matters to supplier firms. Identify a subset of 6-10 interesting £10-20 million 

turnover SMES and interview 2 senior managers in each to see why they do not do more 

business with public sector and feed back to purchasing organisations.  

b) Provide capability support with SME contracts. Add free checks of productive, market and 

financial capability followed by mentoring for SMEs likely to hold a stream of contracts as 

preferred suppliers.  

 
2 PSB’s create a new  base for action in 19 local authorities where they bring together LA, Health Board, Fire 
and Rescue + Natural Resources Wales.  8 are scheduled to be involved in CLES experiment 
3https://www.walesonline.co.uk/business/business-opinion/local-councils-should-act-now-9074525  

Tudalen y pecyn 39

https://www.walesonline.co.uk/business/business-opinion/local-councils-should-act-now-9074525


 

5 
 

c) Pay micro firm principals (and e.g. their partners who do the books at home) to spend a day 

on practical running a small business training e.g. dealing with customers, charging 

overhead, digital book-keeping etc. Ask FE colleges across Wales to develop a national 

course which can be given at many different sites like the Pop Up Business School operation  

d) Anticipate the problem of succession in family owned firms like Castell Howell foods, with 

£100 million turnover and highly attractive as a bolt on acquisition.  So it does not go the 

way of the Gwynedd laundry firm Afon Wen which went to the Johnson Group in 20164.   

3.4 Lever:  Tap regional (North, South and Mid Wales ) opportunities for aggregating 

public and not for profit demand to build capable SMEs (for profit and not for profit) with 

up to £20 million in target sectors. Put simply, Wales has a few firms like Pendine Park in the 

Care Sector (£20 million turnover) who have found a way through obstacles; how can we use 

purchasing to make it easier for the next generation of regional suppliers? 

a) Scope 2 or 3 key sectors like care, construction and maybe public sector Food for existing 

size of demand across region, typical contract size + criteria, stability of demand, amount 

locked up in outsourcing contracts etc. Report and set SME friendly targets to build a few 

regional champions with even handed support of for profit and not for profit firms 

b) Engage purchasers with suppliers in conversation about each side’s current requirements, 

upcoming innovation and future demand for eg care, retro refit, catering supply 

 

3.5 Lever: At area level tap the cross sectoral opportunities for meeting  indirect service 

requirements locally + creating opportunities for micro firms: Services (electrical work, 

grounds maintenance, cafes) are generated and consumed at point of use making them difficult to 

ship long distances, therefore retained value added can be higher. This is the opportunity for micro/ 

small business who are more likely to support the process rather than contribute to the finished 

good (e.g. fitting & maintenance, professional services etc.) 

a) Get public + not for profit + private large employers together (in something like the 
Swansea large employers group) with brief to see how they can collectively make their 
services more micro friendly e.g. via shared preferred supplier lists and small labour mainly 
contracts  

b) Get (a) large employers (e.g. DVLA and Morriston Hospital each employing 3k plus) and (b) 
major tourist attractions (e.g. Zip World at Blaenau Ffestiniog bringing in 250,000 visitors) to 
see their role in sustaining micro firms (a) especially on the local high street by taking 
responsibility for where their  employees live and work or (b)  through tourist footfall.  

 

***** 

Submitted by Karel Williams and drafted after contributions from, and discussion 

between:  

Academics: Julie Froud + Karel Williams (Alliance Manchester Business School); Colin Haslam 

+ Sukhdev Johal (Queen Mary, University of London); Kevin Morgan (University of Cardiff)   

Practitioners:  David Fernandez Arias (Luxson  Venture Capital);  Joe Earle (Economy); Peter 

Folkman (Private Equity); Ian McGrady (Edsential school supplies)  

 
4 https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-36169341 

Tudalen y pecyn 40

https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-wales-36169341


 

6 
 

Welsh Government: Nigel Elias (Better Jobs Closer to Home); Simon Griffiths Commercial 

Innovation and Economic Growth 

Tudalen y pecyn 41


	Agenda
	2.1 Llythyr gan y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol ynghylch Comisiynydd Seilwaith Cenedlaethol Cymru
	2.2 Llythyr gan Weinidog yr Economi a Thrafnidiaeth ynghylch Cadeirydd newydd Maes Awyr Rhyngwladol Caerdydd Cyf (CIAL)
	3 Craffu ar yr adroddiad blynyddol gyda Banc Datblygu Cymru
	4 Caffael Cyhoeddus yn yr Economi Sylfaneol - Cymdeithasau Tai
	5 Caffael Cyhoeddus yn yr Economi Sylfaenol - Academyddion
	EIS(5)24-19(P6) Tystiolaeth Pecynnau Cymorth Gallu Gwneud (Saesneg yn unig)
	EIS(5)-24-19(P7) Tystiolaeth gan Professor Karel Williams and Professor Kevin Morgan (Saesneg yn unig)


